
MINUTES

CITY OF CHEROKEE VILLAGE, ARKANSAS

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

6: 30 P. M., THURSDAY, JULY 16, 2016

CHEROKEE VILLAGE CITY HALL

meetings are video recorded)

Mayor Russell Stokes, Jr. called the regular meeting of the City Council to order at 6:30
p. m.  on Thursday,  July 16,  2015.    He led the Pledge of Allegiance followed by a
moment of silent prayer.

Roll was called by Clerk Lana Hamilton.   Present were Jerry Adams, Les Covington,
Chuck Kristopeit,  Chuck McMahon,  Pamela Rowland,  Rob Smith,  Steve Thompson,

Mayor Stokes and City Attorney Jon Abele; absent was Bill Circle.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Thompson moved to approve the amended agenda,

seconded by Covington and passed unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS:  ( limit 3 minutes per person)

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: Smith moved to approve the June 18, 2015 council

minutes,  seconded by Adams and passed unanimously.

CORRESPONDENCE:   Clerk Hamilton read a letter, that had come with a donation,

from Mrs. Suzanne Gherardini to the Cherokee Village Fire Department.

FINANCIAL REPORT:  Thompson moved to approve the financials for audit, seconded

by Adams and passed unanimously.

MAYOR' S REPORT:     Mayor Stokes stated he had spoken with an aid from

Congressman Rick Crawford' s office regarding cell phone service; Stokes was assured
the information would be passed along, hopefully to the FCC, and someone would get
back to him.  Mayor Stokes stated he had spoken with Representative Scott Baltz about

the old hospital property and it being an attractive nuisance and a health and safety
issue; Stokes inquired about the measures that may be taken by the State to clean up
the property.   Mayor Stokes stated the Visitors Center had been distributing welcome
packets to new residents and visiting people at home; Stokes stated packets were also
being issued at the Visitors Center.   Mayor Stokes stated a photo was recently in the
paper regarding the receipt of a grant for Tohi Nature Trail from WRMC; Stokes stated a
recreational meeting had been held and the discussion at the meeting was helpful for
future grant preparation.      Mayor Stokes stated the WRMC helipad construction had

been delayed after White River discovered they were eligible for a grant; Stokes stated
the construction might start as early as September now.

DEPARTMENT REPORTS:
FIRE:    ( report on file)    Adams inquired about an article in the Villager Journal

regarding the Nine Mile Ridge Fire Department and asked if we provided assistance to

1



them.   Chief Johnny Pendarvis stated we do not provide assistance and there is no
mutual aid agreement with them.

POLICE:  ( report on file)

ANIMAL CONTROL:  ( report on file)

STREET:  ( report on file) — Mayor Stokes showed an old fence post and wire originally
used for fill during the development of roads in Cherokee; Stokes stated much debris
had been found while recently repairing roads, making the repairs more costly.

COMMUNITY SERVICE:  ( report on file)

DISTRICT COURT:  ( report on file)  Mayor Stokes stated District Court would be held

Friday, July 19.

PLANNING & ZONING -

CODE ENFORCEMENT:  ( report on file)

PARKS & PLANNING:  ( report on file)

RESTORATION:  ( Bob Bickle)

1 - NOTICE OF HEARING TO CONSIDER RAZE AND REMOVAL RESOLUTION FOR:

Lot 23,  Block 10,  Santa Fe Addition  ( 23 Vista Large Drive)  to Cherokee Village

Subdivision, Fulton County, Arkansas - James McGovern, Owner - Bob Bickle stated
the property was almost cleaned up but asked council to approve the mailing of the 4th
and final letter to ensure the property was 100% complete.   After lengthy discussion,
Covington moved to approve the mailing of the 4th and final, 30 day letter, seconded by
Thompson.  A roll call vote was taken; there were 7 yeas, passing the motion to mail the
4th and final, 30 day letter to the property owner.
2 - Adams inquired about the property owner on Nocatee who was given a 45 day
extension to clean his own property with a $ 2,000 limit; Bickle stated a non- licensed
contractor had been on-site and was instructed he could not perform the work without a

license.  After lengthy discussion, Bickle stated he would send a letter to the property
owner.

A & P COMMISSION REPORT:

COMMITTEES:

GRANTS:

PUBLIC SAFETY:  Rowland stated there was no meeting held in July but there would
be one in August.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

NEW BUSINESS:

1 — Property donated to City:  Lot 6, Block 15, Ojibway 3rd Addition/ Parcel # 278-00333-
000fraxes: Current - Mayor Stokes stated council needed to accept or not accept the

property donated to the City off Delaware;  Stokes stated the taxes were paid and there
would be no cost to the City.   Stokes stated usage wise, the property could be a
potential area for a storm siren.  Kristopeit stated the property could also be used as a
trade off for property needed for The Ancient Path.   Rowland moved to accept the
donated property, seconded by Kristopeit.  A roll call vote was taken; there were 7 yeas
passing the motion to accept the donated property unanimously.
2 — Grant Resolution re:  Tohi Trail - Mayor Stokes stated Mary Whelan is applying for
three grants.    Stokes stated the Arkansas Rural Community Grant Program would

2



accept the City's " in- kind" work for their portion of financial obligation.   The plan is to
erect a pavilion with a request of $10, 721. 27 coming from Arkansas Rural Community
Grant, $ 4,200 in " in- kind" labor from the City and a $ 2, 500 pledge commitment from
WRMC.   Stokes stated the resolution would fulfill the requirements of the application

and would not be committing any money.   Whelan has also requested approval on a
50150 grant from Arkansas Parks & Tourism.   Thompson moved to approve the grant

resolution,  seconded by Kristopeit.   A roll call vote was taken;  there were 7 yeas,
passing the motion unanimously.
3  —  Committee Appointment  -  Mayor stokes announced the resignation of Mark

Kronkosky from the Planning & Zoning Commission and Jim Haney from the Roads &
Streets Committee.   Stokes recommended David Duncan to replace Haney on the
Street Committee and Joe Waggoner to replace Kronkosky on the Planning & Zoning
Commission.   MaMahon moved to approve both appointments, seconded by Adams
and passed unanimously.

4 — Mayor Stokes stated the Sick Leave Bank Policy was not on the July agenda so it
would be postponed until the August agenda and discussed at that time.

COMMENTS OF CITY RELATED ITEMS:  ( limit 3 minutes per person)

1 - Stoplight at Wal-Mart - Colleen Wiley spoke of the June 14th accident in front of Wal-
Mart that took the life of her friend and neighbor, Marie Hitchcock.  Wiley stated she had
contacted Judge Larry Brown who stated he would work with the four quad city Mayors
and also contact Representative Scott Baltz.  The State Police stated there must be five

deaths before a light would be installed because it is a state highway; there have been
numerous accidents in the past, but only one fatality.  Wiley spoke to the Mayor of Ash
Flat, Larry Fowler, who said he would request a survey take place by the State.  Wiley
stated she would be speaking with the Mayor of Highland on August 11th and the Mayor
of Hardy on July 21st.  Wiley stated having petitions signed would not help; Wiley stated
the State has to approve the installation of the light.

ANNOUNCEMENTS:

ADJOURNMENT:   Rowland moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:24 p. m., seconded by
Covington and passed unanimously.

NOTE:   Minutes are prepared by Kathi Blackwell, Assistant to Clerk/Treasurer Lana
Hamilton (with Hamilton' s approval)

DATE: J

APPROVED:

Russell Stokes, Jr., Mayor

ATTE3   \" V

Lana Hamilton, City Clerk/Treasurer

3


